
MINUTES OF 
FAIRFAX COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 

THURSDAY, JULY 25, 2019 

PRESENT: Peter F. Murphy, Chairman, Springfield District 

James R. Hart, Commissioner At-Large 

James T. Migliaccio, Lee District 

Timothy J. Sargeant, Commissioner At-Large 

Ellen J. Hurley, Braddock District 

John A. Carter, Hunter Mill District 

Julie M. Strandlie, Mason District 

Walter C. Clarke, Mount Vernon District 

Phillip A. Niedzielski-Eichner, Providence District 

Mary D. Cortina, Commissioner At-Large 

ABSENT: John C. Ulfelder, Dranesville District 

Donte Tanner, Sully District 

// 

The meeting was called to order at 7:44 p.m., by Chairman Peter F. Murphy, in the Board 
Auditorium of the Fairfax County Government Center, 12000 Government Center Parkway, 
Fairfax, Virginia 22035. 

// 

COMMISSION MATTERS 

Commissioner Migliaccio announced that the Planning Commission's Land Use Process Review 
Committee met earlier that evening from 6:30 p.m. to 7:30 p.m. to discuss Phase 2 of the Public 
Facilities Manual Flexibility Project. 

// 

Commissioner Migliaccio announced his intent to move approval of the meeting minutes for 
January 2019 and February 2019 at the Planning Commission meeting on July 31, 2019. 

// 

RZ/FDP 2017-BR-030 — ROBERTS ROAD INVESTMENT LC (Decision Only) 
(Public Hearing on these applications was held on June 17, 2019) 

(Start Verbatim Transcript) 

Commissioner Hurley: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. This is in regards to RZ/FDP 2017-BR-030, 
Roberts Road Investment, LC. I note that the Braddock District Land Use and Environment 
Committee voted 12 to 0 in support of this application with some specific recommendations, 
partially in response to these recommendations, as well as to the issues my fellow 
Commissioners raised at the public hearing. During the deferral period, several proffers have 
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been revised or updated and have been distributed to the Planning Commissioners. The more 

substantive changes include Proffer Number 4, Architectural Design, which has been clarified to 

ensure building heights will not exceed 45 feet or have more than three living levels. Proffer 7, 

Off-Site Recreation, clarified that the contribution will be based on the new net residents. Proffer 

12, the garage conversion, clarified to ensure that the driveway length is at — at least 19 feet, 8 

inches long from the garage door to the sidewalk. In Proffer 14, the HOA documents revised to 

ensure that all landscaping will be native and non-invasive — that all short-term rentals will be 

prohibited and that the HOA will be responsible for maintenance of the internal streets, parks, 

and other community amenities on the site. Proffer 19 states the applicants will provide 

temporary basins on the northeast corner of the site to detain runoff while the final stormwater 

management facilities are being installed. And Proffer 23, the tree protection fencing was 

clarified to ensure that the southern magnolia tree in the center of the site is further protected 

from lightning with a lightning rod type device grounded to the Earth outside the dripline. And 

finally, Proffer 27, Native Plant Rescue, the applicant has agreed to allow qualified organizations 

to enter the property to remove local plants in company with the applicant or representative. Are 

there any questions? 

Commissioner Cortina: Yes. 

Chairman Murphy: Ms. Cortina. 

Commissioner Cortina: Yes, I wanted to comment I was not in attendance at this public meeting 

so I do plan to abstain. However, I caution that this application does not meet the minimum tree 

preservation requirement that was specifically listed in the Comprehensive Plan for this site as a 

condition for upzoning this property. Condition 4 reads redevelopment is sensitive to existing 

environmental features, particularly the major tree stands primarily located at the eastern extent 

of the property, adjacent to University Park, which should be preserved in consultation with the 

Fairfax County Urban Forest Management Division. I understand it is not customary for 

applications to be disapproved for not meeting the tree preservation ordinance, but when there is 

site-specific guidance this should be given serious consideration. And while I appreciate the 

additional proffers, they are not a substitute for the site-specific guidance in the Comprehensive 

Plan. Thank you. 

Commissioner Niedzielski-Eichner: Mr. Chairman? 

Chairman Murphy: Yes. Mr. Niedzielski-Eichner. 

Commissioner Niedzielski-Eichner: I would ask is staff in a position to address the concern that 

Commissioner Cortina has just raised? 

Chairman Murphy: Is there a staff person here for this application? 

William O'Donnell, Zoning Evaluation Division, Department of Planning and Development: 

Yes. This is William O'Donnell. As I mentioned at the public hearing, staff balanced the 

development conditions in the Comprehensive Plan and also balanced the density that was 

permitted in the Comprehensive Plan. And, as part of the overall review, the applicant has come 

in the midpoint of the density range and balanced the rest of the development conditions and, 
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therefore, staff found that the overall proposal was in harmony with the Comprehensive Plan 

guidance. 

Chairman Murphy: Thank you. 

Commissioner Niedzielski-Eichner: Ms. Cortina, would you respond to that for me, please? I 

read the material and I hear staff's assessment in the context of the Comprehensive Plan. What 

about tree preservation? 

Commissioner Cortina: Well, the tree preservation ordinance has a target and this specific site 

has guidance in it that I read to you that said that the eastern extent of the property adjacent to 

University Park. It's very specific that that was a condition for finding that the redevelopment 

option for single-family detached residential use at three to five dwelling units per acre might be 

appropriate. So I did not find that this condition was met. There were four conditions. The other 

three were met. This one was not. And there were other tree save areas along Roberts Road that 

were in poor condition that was reported by the Urban Forest Management Division to be in poor 

condition. And so, as a result of that — and I was not at this public hearing, so therefore, I am 

going to abstain, but obviously, if they had moved the tree save area west a bit, they could have 

saved these trees. They can still do that and still meet the tree preservation target and meet the 

Comprehensive Plan guidance. 

Commissioner Hurley: Mr. Chairman? 

Chairman Murphy: Yes, Ms. Hurley. 

Commissioner Hurley: I'll note that there — the first 15 feet next to the park all along that side 

already has been saved, but I would ask the applicant to come down and address that point if Ms. 

Yantis is available. I don't — all right. Mr. O'Donnell, can you address the issue? Oh, there she is. 

Susan K. Yantis, Applicant's Agent, Hunton Andrews Kurth, LLP (f/k/a Hunton & Williams, 

LLP): Thank you. I'm Susan Yantis. I'm a land use planner with Hunton, Andrews, and Kurth. I 

have been working with Frank McDermott on this application. He is out of town and is unable to 

attend tonight. The applicant walked with representatives of UFMD in terms of looking at the 

tree preservation and it is — what it was determined was that the property along the eastern 

portion of the property adjacent to the public park to the east was the most important area to save 

— the tree preservation along that eastern portion of the property line. 

Commissioner Cortina: Okay. Well, I have from the tree preservation — and it's in the record — 

and this letter is from the Urban Forestry Division. They said they've reviewed all their memos 

regarding this case and have not identified the trees along the eastern property boundary as being 

in poor condition. There was a misunderstanding about which trees. There are many trees along 

the eastern property boundary that are in fair to good decision. Along the southern property 

boundary along Roberts Road, there are many dead trees and trees in poor condition that would 

not be eligible for tree canopy credit used to meet our minimum preservation requirement. I've 

consistently stated this fact in my memos and have reiterated that the applicant will not meet the 

tree preservation target, as proposed. I have also reiterated in my memos the value of providing a 

tree inventory and condition analysis, but have not received one. I have consistently 
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recommended the trees on the eastern property boundary as priorities for preservation. So that is 

what they sent to me in my request for getting clarification. We did not have a tree survey as part 

of this application so I had to contact them directly to understand why this condition was not 

being met. 

Ms. Yantis: Well, I recall with one of the earlier submissions of the — the layout, we were not — 

we were not providing any tree save along the eastern boundary. And subsequently, in working 

with my recollection — with UFMD and County staff, we redesigned the layout to provide the 

buffer along the eastern property line with a — near the existing parkland. That's not programmed 

for development in its existing vegetation in that area. 

Commissioner Cortina: And for clarification, the 15 feet that we're talking about is just short of 

where all the trees — trees are located. So had that limits of disturbance been moved slightly, then 

you would have saved all of those trees and you would have been in harmony with the 

Comprehensive Plan and with the tree preservation goals. Instead, you are planting new trees in 

order to meet the tree canopy requirements. 

Ms. Yantis: Well, there are several trees there existing along that property line, which is right on 

the border between the park and the property. So I can't recall whether specific — we get 

calculations for those existing trees, but they're right along the boundary in that area — several 

existing trees that will be retained. 

Commissioner Cortina: Memo is in the record. 

Commissioner Hurley: Mr. Chairman? 

Chairman Murphy: Okay, Ms. Hurley. 

Commissioner Hurley: If there are no further questions? 

Chairman Murphy: Are there any questions? Go ahead. 

Commissioner Hurley: Mr. O'Donnell, can you confirm there are no development conditions to 

reaffirm? 

Mr. O'Donnell: That's correct. The applicant has provided an executed set of proffers. 

Commissioner Hurley: Thank you. With that Mr. Chairman, I MOVE THAT THE PLANNING 

COMMISSION RECOMMEND TO THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS —APPROVE RZ 2017-

BR-030 AND THE ASSOCIATED CONCEPTUAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN, SUBJECT TO 

PROFFERS CONSISTENT WITH THOSE NOW DATED JULY 23RD, 2019. 

Commissioner Sargeant: Second. 

Chairman Murphy: Seconded by Mr. Sargeant. Is there a discussion of the motion? All those in 

favor of the motion to recommend to the Board of Supervisors that it approve RZ-2017-BR-030, 

say aye. 
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Commissioners: Aye. 

Chairman Murphy: Opposed? Motion carries. Ms. Hurley. 

Commissioner Hurley: And one abstention. 

Chairman Murphy: And abstain... 

Commissioner Niedzielski-Eichner: Mr. Chairman, I abstain. 

Chairman Murphy: Were you here for the public hearing? 

Commissioner Niedzielski-Eichner: No. 

Chairman Murphy: Well, you don't have to abstain. You've already said — oh yeah, abstention for 

— not here for the public hearing. And Mr. Niedzielski-Eichner abstains. 

Commissioner Hurley: I FURTHER MOVE THE PLANNING COMMISSION APPROVE FDP 

2017-BR-030, SUBJECT TO THE BOARD'S APPROVAL OF THE CONCURRENT 

REZONING APPLICATION. 

Commissioner Sargeant: Second. 

Chairman Murphy: Seconded by Mr. Sargeant. Is there a discussion of that motion? All those in 

favor of the motion to approve FDP 2017-BR-030 following the Board's approval of the 

rezoning and the conceptual development plan, say aye. 

Commissioners: Aye. 

Chairman Murphy: Opposed? Motion carries. Same abstentions. 

Commissioner Hurley: And finally, I MOVE THAT THE PLANNING COMMISSION 

RECOMMEND THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS — TO APPROVE A MODIFICATION OF 

THE PRIVATE STREET LIMITATIONS OF SECTION 11-302 OF THE FAIRFAX COUNTY 

ZONING ORDINANCE IN FAVOR OF THE PRIVATE STREETS SHOWN ON THE 

CDP/FDP. 

Commissioner Sargeant: Second. 

Chairman Murphy: Seconded by Mr. Sargeant. Is there a discussion of that motion? All those in 

favor, say aye. 

Commissioners: Aye. 

Chairman Murphy: Opposed? Motion carries. Same abstentions. 
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Each motion carried by a vote of 8-0-2. Commissioners Cortina and Niedzielski-Eichner 

abstained from the vote. Commissioners Tanner and Ulfelder were absent from the meeting. 

(End Verbatim Transcript) 

'-

 

ORDER OF THE AGENDA  

Commissioner Migliaccio established the following order of the agenda: 

1. CODE AMENDMENT— CHAPTER 61 (BUILDING PROVISIONS; CHAPTER 101 

(SUBDIVISION PROVISIONS); CHAPTER 108.1 (NOISE ORDINANCE); CHAPTER 

109.1 (SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT); CHAPTER 114 (AGRICULTURAL AND 

FORESTAL DISTRICTS OF STATEWIDE SIGNIFICANCE); AND CHAPTER 115 

(LOCAL AGRICULTURAL AND FORESTAL DISTRICTS) 

2. SE 2019-MA-003 — BENEVIS, LLC 

3. SE 2019-SP-010 — FEDERAL REALTY INVESTMENT TRUST 

4. RZ/FDP 2018-BR-025/PCA-C-058 — ONE UNIVERSITY DEVELOPMENT 

PARTNERS, LLC 

This order was accepted without objection. 

// 

CODE AMENDMENT — CHAPTER 61 (BUILDING  

PROVISIONS; CHAPTER 101 (SUBDIVISION PROVISIONS); 

CHAPTER 108.1 (NOISE ORDINANCE); CHAPTER 109.1  

(SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT); CHAPTER 114  

(AGRICULTURAL AND FORESTAL DISTRICTS OF  

STATEWIDE SIGNIFICANCE); AND CHAPTER 115 (LOCAL 

AGRICULTURAL AND FORESTAL DISTRICTS) — To amend 

101 (the Subdivision Provisions) and Chapter 115 (Local 

Agricultural and Forestal Districts) of the 1976 Code of the County 

of Fairfax, as follows: Change the agency name from "Department 

of Planning and Zoning" or "DPZ" to "Department of Planning 

and Development" or "DPD", as appropriate. COUNTYWIDE. 

PUBLIC HEARING. 

Sara Morgan, Planning Division, Department of Planning and Development, presented the staff 

report, a copy of which is in the date file. She noted that staff recommended adoption of the 

proposed Code Amendment for Chapter 101 (Subdivision Provisions), Chapter 108.1 (Noise 

Ordinance), Chapter 109.1 (Solid Waste Management), Chapter 114 (Agricultural and Forestal 

Districts of Statewide Significance), and Chapter 115 (Local Agricultural and Forestal Districts). 

Chairman Murphy called for speakers from the audience, but received no response; therefore, he 

stated that there was no need for a rebuttal statement from Ms. Morgan. There were no further 
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CHAPTER 101 (SUBDIVISION PROVISIONS); CHAPTER 108.1 

(NOISE ORDINANCE); CHAPTER 109.1 (SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT); 

CHAPTER 114 (AGRICULTURAL AND FORESTAL DISTRICTS OF 

STATEWIDE SIGNIFICANCE); AND CHAPTER 115 (LOCAL AGRICULTURAL 

AND FORESTAL DISTRICTS) 

comments or questions from the Commission; therefore, Chairman Murphy closed the public 

hearing and recognized Commissioner Cortina for action on this case. 

(Start Verbatim Transcript) 

// 

Commissioner Cortina: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. While this does affect a lot of parts of Code, 

it's only a name change so — and I have verified it all, too. Nothing was snuck in here by the 

legal department. So I would like to make a motion to recommend approval. I MOVE THAT 

THE PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMEND TO THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS THE 

ADOPTION OF THE PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO CHAPTER 101 AND CHAPTER 115 

RELATED TO THE CHANGE IN AGENCY NAME FROM THE DEPARTMENT OF 

PLANNING AND ZONING TO THE DEPARTMENT OF PLANNING AND 

DEVELOPMENT, AS SET FORTH IN STAFF REPORT DATED JUNE 25, 2019. 

Commissioner Sargeant: Second. 

Chairman Murphy: Seconded by Mr. Sargeant. Is there a discussion of the motion? All those in 

favor of the motion, as articulated by Ms. Cortina, say aye. 

Commissioners: Aye. 

Chairman Murphy: Opposed? Motion carries. 

Commissioner Cortina: Thank you. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 

Chairman Murphy: Thank you very much. 

The motion carried by a vote of 9-0. Commissioner Carter was not present for the vote. 

Commissioners Tanner and Ulfelder were absent from the meeting. 

(End Verbatim Transcript) 

// 

SE 2019-MA-003 — BENEVIS, LLC — Appl. under Sects. 4-504, 

4-505,4-508, 9-516, 9-608, 9-609, 9-612, 9-620 and 9-625 of the 

Zoning Ordinance to permit an increase of office GFA in the C-5 

District, parking in an R District, waiver of open space, 

modification of minimum yard requirements for certain existing 

structure and uses and certain sign regulations. Located at 6531 
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Arlington Blvd., Falls Church, 22042 on approx. 1.47 ac. of land 

zoned C-5, R-3 and HC. Tax Map 50-4 ((1)) 20. MASON 

DISTRICT. PUBLIC HEARING. 

Patrick M. Via, Applicant's Agent, Rees Broome, PC, reaffirmed the affidavit dated June 21, 

2019. 

Commissioner Hart disclosed that his law firm, Hart & Horan, PC, had at least one case in which 

there were attorneys from Mr. Via's firm representing adverse parties. However, he noted that 

matter and those parties were unrelated to the subject application and there was no business or 

financial relationship; therefore, it would not affect his ability to participate in the public hearing. 

Commissioner Strandlie asked that Chairman Murphy ascertain whether there were any speakers 

for this application. There being none, she asked that presentations by staff and the applicant be 

waived, and the public hearing closed. No objections were expressed; therefore, Chairman 

Murphy closed the public hearing and recognized Commissioner Strandlie for action on this 

case. 

(Start Verbatim Transcript) 

II 

Commissioner Strandlie: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. This is a very straightforward case. It's the 

addition of four dental chairs to an existing shopping center business. The Mason District Land 

Use Committee recommended approval with a couple of— with one change to add some 

language to request that a fence be repaired along the southern property line. The other condition 

change was to clarify phrasing of phasing out reserved parking and to add a new date to the 

development conditions. And with that, I am ready to ask the applicant to confirm for the record 

their agreement to the development conditions dated July 24th, 2019. 

Patrick M. Via, Applicant's Agent, Rees Broome, PC: The applicant confirms the development 

conditions. I also spoke with the owner's representative, David Gill, and he told me that I had 

authority to agree as well. 

Commissioner Strandlie: Great. Thank you very much. I MOVE THAT THE PLANNING 

COMMISSION RECOMMEND THAT THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS APPROVE SE 2019-

MA-003, SUBJECT TO THE DEVELOPMENT CONDITIONS DATED JULY 24TH, 2019. 

Commissioner Sargeant: Second. 

Chairman Murphy: Seconded by Mr. Sargeant. Is there a discussion of the motion? All those in 

favor of the motion to recommend to the Board of Supervisors that it approve SE 2019-MA-003, 

say aye. 

Commissioners: Aye. 

Chairman Murphy: Opposed? Motion carries. 
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Commissioner Strandlie: I FURTHER MOVE THAT THE PC — THE PC — THE PLANNING 

COMMISSION RECOMMEND THAT THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS APPROVE THE 

LIST OF WAIVERS AND MODIFICATIONS DATED JULY 251H, 2019, THAT WERE 

HANDED OUT TODAY AND WILL BE MADE PART OF THE RECORD. 

Commissioner Sargeant: Second. 

Chairman Murphy: Seconded by Mr. Sargeant. Discussion? All those in favor of that motion, 

say aye. 

Commissioners: Aye. 

Chairman Murphy: Opposed? Motion carries. 

Commissioner Strandlie: Thank you very much. 

Chairman Murphy: Thank you very much. 

Each motion carried by a vote of 10-0. Commissioners Tanner and Ulfelder were absent from the 

meeting. 

(End Verbatim Transcript) 

1/ 

The next case was in the Springfield District; therefore, Chairman Murphy relinquished the Chair 

to Vice Chairman Hart. 

/1 

SE 2019-SP-010 — FEDERAL REALTY INVESTMENT TRUST 

— Appl. under Sect. 9-620 of the Zoning Ordinance to permit 

waiver of certain sign regulations. Located at 8402 Old Keene Mill 

Rd., Springfield, 22152 on approx. 10.09 ac. of land zoned C-6 and 

HC. Tax Map 79-3 ((5)) 1B. SPRINGFIELD DISTRICT. PUBLIC 

HEARING. 

Sheri L. Akin, Applicant's Agent, McGuireWoods, LLP, reaffirmed the affidavit dated June 21, 

2019. 

There were no disclosures by Commission members. 

Jay Rodenbeck, Zoning Evaluation Division, Department of Planning and Development, 

presented the staff report, a copy of which is in the date file. He noted that staff recommended 

denial of application SE 2019-SP-010 for the following reasons: 
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• The proposed signage was not in harmony with the Comprehensive Plan or the applicable 
Zoning Ordinance provisions; 

• The applicant had not justified an unusual circumstance or demonstrated the need for a 
waiver of the sign regulations for the requested height and size; and 

• The proposed signage would be a more visually intensive structure than the existing 
signage. 

Ms. Akin gave a presentation on the subject application in which she addressed staff's opposition 
as follows: 

• The existing sign on the site was a non-conforming sign that had been constructed prior 
to current signage regulation and the proposal would permit a shorter sign with a stone 
foundation; 

• The design of the proposed signage would reduce the non-conforming nature of the sign; 

• The signage was required to identify the on-site shopping center under the terms of the 
existing lease; 

• The proposed signage would reduce the overall sign area compared to the existing 
structure; 

• The proposed sign would be consistent with planned redevelopment efforts for the 
shopping center; 

• The aesthetics of the proposed signage would improve the visual impact of the sign; 

• The proposed signage was consistent with the designs and sizes of similar non-
conforming signs in other locations throughout the County; and 

• The subject application had the support of the Springfield District Land Use Committee. 

There was a discussion between Mr. Rodenbeck, Ms. Akin, and multiple Commissioners on the 
following issues: 

• The design, height, materials, font, and aesthetics of the proposed signage; 

• The portions of the proposed structure that could be utilized for signage; 

• The staff justifications for permitting modifications to similar non-conforming signs 
throughout the County; 

• The criteria for determining whether a non-conforming sign was in harmony with the 
Comprehensive Plan and Zoning Ordinance; 

• The impact of GPS systems on the need for large signage; 

• The efforts by staff to encourage the applicant to reduce the size and area of the signage; 

• The signage requirements for existing and prospective tenants of the on-site shopping 

center that had been delineated in the leases for retail space; 

• The presence of trees on the site and the potential for those trees to obstruct the sign; 

• The precedent that would be set for permitting non-conforming signage; 

• The ongoing revitalization efforts throughout the area; 

• The possible impact of denying the subject application on the revitalization efforts 
throughout the area; 

• The speed limit for vehicles traveling along Rolling Road and Old Keene Mill Road; 

• The existing traffic conditions along Rolling Road and Old Keene Mill Road; 
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• The visual and aesthetic impact of the proposed signage compared to the existing 

structure; and 

• The extent to which the standards of the Zoning Ordinance and Comprehensive Plan had 

been applied to the proposal. 

The discussion resulted in no changes to the subject application. 

Vice Chairman Hart called the first listed speaker and recited the rules for public testimony. 

Michael DeLoose, 8233 Forrester Boulevard, Springfield, representing the West Springfield 

Civic Association, spoke in support of the subject application for the following reasons: 

• The justifications articulated by staff for recommending denial were inadequate; 

• The proposed signage would improve the aesthetics of the existing retail development on 

the site; 

• The existing signage was visually obtrusive; 

• The proposed signage would reduce the size and intensity of the structure; 

• The proposed signage would complement the ongoing revitalization efforts for the 

existing retail development on the subject application; and 

• The residents of the surrounding community did not oppose the proposed signage. 

(A copy of Mr. DeLoose's statement is in the date file.) 

There was a discussion between Mr. DeLoose and multiple Commissioners on the following 

issues: 

• The resource for the applicant if the subject application were denied; 

• The design and aesthetics of the proposed signage compared to that utilized at similar 

sites throughout the County; 

• The efforts to improve the aesthetic of signage in other parts of the County; 

• The date of the Board of Supervisors' public hearing for the subject application; 

• The extent of the existing retail development throughout the area and the signage such 
development utilized; and 

• The location, size, and design of other signs throughout the subject property. 

Vice Chairman Hart called for speakers from the audience, but received no response. There being 

no more speakers, Vice Chairman Hart called for a rebuttal statement from Ms. Akin, who 

declined. 

Commissioner Hurley stated that while she did not oppose the proposed signage, she had 

received comments from nearby residents within the Braddock District who had expressed 

concern about the size of the sign and the legibility of the text on the sign. Therefore, she 

announced her intent to abstain from the vote on the subject application. 
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There were no further comments or questions from the Commission and staff had no closing 

remarks; therefore, Vice Chairman Hart closed the public hearing and recognized Commissioner 

Murphy for action on this case. 

(Start Verbatim Transcript) 

// 

Commissioner Murphy: Thank you very much. First, I want to thank Mike DeLoose for coming 

out and speaking to us this evening. He certainly knows the neighborhood and we, in the process, 
contacted a number of homeowners associations in the area and the feelings were I don't care 

about it. I think it is a good idea. Let's do it. And I know some of the folks in the Braddock 

District were upset because it was in — you know, they — they didn't — I don't think they 

understood that what we're after is a waiver of what the sign ordinance says. Not that this is just 

a pro forma thing that is on the table to be approved and denied based on the bases of what it is 

without the variations in size. You have heard from Mike DeLoose that this was presented to the 

Springfield Land Use Committee and Jeff Saxe, the Chairman of that committee, sent me a letter. 

I think his summary of why this should be approved and the voices of the citizens from the 

Springfield District and now from the Braddock District with Mr. Reflo, who wants this sign put 

in. He likes it the way it is. I'm — I — This is the first time I've received something late from — as 
an e-mail, but — oh, he says, "it is barely over the size restrictions of the new sign regulations 

because they are adding the rock base and the facade and need to have — to add a small sign to 

meet their contractual obligations for the four current businesses within the shopping center." 

And he encourages this as a means of— of, you know, good neighborhood and business — 

businesses — the business aspect of having signage that — that tells the people what businesses 

have invested in the shopping center and, in this particular case, have invested heavily on the 

revitalization, which was much needed of this shopping center. And this is what Mr. Saxe wrote 

in his opinion for the land use committee. The committee voted unanimously to recommend 
approval of this application, as presented. The proposed sign will be reduced in height and this 

the — before they reduced it another time — the sign will be reduced in height and was considered 

much more attractive than the existing sign. Its design has common elements with the recent 
façade upgrades of the shopping center buildings. We recognize that the proposed sign is 

considered to have more sign area than the existing sign, due to the method the County uses to 

measure sign area. Notwithstanding this, my perception and the committee's perception is that 

this is an overall reduction in sign area, contrary to the staff position. I consider the proposed 
sign to be less visually intrusive and obtrusive than the existing sign. The reduction in height is a 

significant improvement. And I think he is right on there and so do a lot of the citizens in the area 

who are on this committee. So therefore, Mr. Chairman, I move — oh, would the applicant please 

come forward? Would you confirm for the record your agreement to the proposed development 

conditions dated July 11 th, 2019? 

Sheri L. Akin, Applicant's Agent, McGuireWoods, LLP: The applicant does agree to the 

development conditions dated July 11th 

Commissioner Murphy: Thank you very much. Therefore, I MOVE, MR. CHAIRMAN, THAT 

THE PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMEND TO THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
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APPROVAL OF SE 2019-SP-010, SUBJECT TO THE PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT 

CONDITIONS DATED JULY 111H, 2019. 

Commissioners Migliaccio and Sargeant: Second. 

Vice Chairman Hart: Seconded by Commissioners Migliaccio and Sargeant. Any discussion on 

the motion? Commissioner Strandlie. 

Commissioner Strandlie: I'm going to vote no on this — on the motion. Going back to when we 

did the sign in the Seven Corners area, we did reduce the sign limit and there was a lot of 

abstentions because there were votes on larger signs. And that would have set a different 

precedent. In this case, I think if we continue to go forward with larger signs, we're going to 

have — continue to have special exceptions and larger and larger signs in Fairfax. And I think we 

need to stick with what we have in the rules and I would hope that we could work to get this in 

conformance so I will be voting no. 

Commissioner Murphy: Mr. Chairman, just a comment. 

Vice Chairman Hart: Commissioner Murphy. 

Commissioner Murphy: Just a comment on that. You know, this is not a cookie-cutter planning 

process and each application is judged on an individual basis. And that's the way it should be, 

not — it has to be regimented and a — all signs have to be the same signs or within this — or within 

these parameters. Different signs for different uses vary. And not everybody has a GPS. They 

have to see down the road where they want to turn left and right. 

Commissioner Niedzielski-Eichner: Mr. Chairman? 

Vice Chairman Hart: Commissioner Niedzielski-Eichner. 

Commissioner Niedzielski-Eichner: Thank you, I just — I also want to comment on this. This — 

the — from my vantage point, if this is a brand new sign and the applicant was coming in wanting 

to work outside of the framework of the sign — sign ordinance, I would be opposed to it. This is 

an existing sign — taller, visually less attractive. The only real new square-footage that has been 

added is at the base, which is very attractive base. So, I — I just have — I struggle with the concern 

that this is setting a precedent when it is an existing sign that's in — taller and in worse condition 

and if it were a new sign, I certainly wouldn't be supporting it. 

Vice Chairman Hart: Thank you. I'm going to say I don't like big signs either. I used to have 

Commissioner — Chairman Connolly as my supervisor and we had land use discussions from 

time to time where we didn't agree. And — an Chairman Connolly used to say, you can't let the 

perfect be the enemy of the good. You can't always get what you want and in this case, we have 

an old — 51-year-old ugly pole sign. We have an application to do something better. I think we 

should go with something better. Further discussion on the motion? Seeing none, we'll move to a 

vote. All in favor, please say aye. 

Commissioners: Aye. 
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Vice Chairman Hart: Those opposed? 

Commissioner Strandlie: No. 

Vice Chairman Hart: Commissioner Strandlie votes no. Any abstentions? Commissioner Hurley 

abstains. The motion carries, one no vote and one abstention. Everyone else votes yes. Thank 

you. 

The motion carried by a vote of 8-1-1. Commissioner Strandlie voted in opposition. 

Commissioner Hurley abstained from the vote. Commissioners Tanner and Ulfelder were absent 

from the meeting. 

(End Verbatim Transcript) 

// 

At the conclusion of the case, Chairman Murphy resumed the Chair. 

// 

RZ/FDP 2018-BR-025 — ONE UNIVERSITY DEVELOPMENT 

PARTNERS, LLC — Appls. to rezone from PDH-5, R-I and WS to 

PRM and WS to permit residential development with an overall 

Floor Area Ratio (FAR) of 1.56 and approval of the conceptual and 

final development plan. Located on the N. side of University Dr. 

and W. side of Ox Rd. on approx. 10.84 ac. of land. Comp. Plan 

Rec: Residential with a redevelopment option up to 580 units. Tax 

Map 57-3 ((1)) 11A, 11B and 57-4 ((1)) 2B. (Concurrent with 

PCA C-058). BRADDOCK DISTRICT. PUBLIC HEARING. 

PCA-C-058 — ONE UNIVERSITY DEVELOPMENT 

PARTNERS, LLC — Appl. to amend the proffers for RZ RZ-C-058 

previously approved for residential and office uses to permit 

deletion of land area. Located on the N. side University Dr. and W. 

side of Ox Rd. on approx. 8.44 ac. of land zoned PDH-5 and WS. 

Comp. Plan Rec: Residential with redevelopment option up to 580 

units. Tax Map 57-3 ((1)) 11A and 11B. (Concurrent with 

RZ/FDP 2018-BR-025). BRADDOCK DISTRICT. PUBLIC 

HEARING. 

Gregory R. Riegle, Applicant's Agent, McGuireWoods, LLP, reaffirmed the affidavit dated June 

5,2019. 

There were no disclosures by Commission members. 
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Commissioner Hurley announced her intent to defer the decision only for the subject applications 

at the conclusion of the public hearing. 

Sharon Williams, Planning Division, Department of Planning and Development, presented the 
staff report, a copy of which is in the date file. She noted that staff recommended approval of 
applications RZ/FDP 2018-BR-025/PCA-C-058. 

Mr. Riegle gave a presentation for the subject applications, a copy of which is in the date file. 

There was a discussion between Ms. Williams; Mr. Riegle; William Capers, Fairfax County 
Department of Transportation (FCDOT); Thomas Fleetwood, Department of Housing and 
Community Development; and multiple Commissioners on the following issues: 

• The planned transportation improvements included with the proposal and the feasibility 
of implementing such improvements; 

• The approval process for the proposed transportation improvements by the Virginia 
Department of Transportation (VDOT); 

• The evaluation of the proposed transportation improvements conducted by FCDOT and 
the subsequent conclusions of such evaluations; 

• The status of VDOT's evaluation of the proposed transportation improvements; 

• The impact of the proposed transportation improvements on the level of service for the 

surrounding road network; 

• The extent to which the proposed transportation improvements compared with similar 

improvements throughout the County; 

• The recourse for the proposal if VDOT did not approve the applicant's transportation 
improvements; 

• The impact of the proposed transportation improvements on the pedestrian crossing 

provisions for the intersection of Ox Road and University Drive; 

• The existing conditions for pedestrians crossing the intersection of Ox Road and 
University Drive; 

• The proposed development's compliance with the standards for a Planned Residential 
Mixed-Use District; 

• The extent to which staff supported the applicant's depictions of the final condition of the 
proposed development; 

• The applicant's efforts to consider implementing additional transportation and pedestrian 
path improvements throughout the area; 

• The cost and feasibility of certain transportation and pedestrian path improvements in the 
area; 

• The applicant's efforts to coordinate with George Mason University on the proposed 
development; 

• The plans for further redevelopment and transportation improvements that were under 
consideration by George Mason University; 

• The existing paths that pedestrians could utilize for crossing the intersection of Ox Road 
and University Drive; 
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• The existing shuttle services provided by George Mason University and the location of 

shuttle stops; 

• The efforts by the applicant and George Mason University to mitigate the existing traffic 

conditions at the intersection of Ox Road and University Drive; 

• The extent and scope of the traffic studies that had been conducted on the existing road 

network surrounding the subject application; 

• The possibility of modifications to the ingress/egress provisions for the George Mason 

University campus; 

• The applicant proffered commitments for buffering between the subject property and the 

existing residential development to the north; 

• The adequacy of the applicant's buffering provisions; 

• The availability of walkable paths, alternative transportation methods, and taxi services 

for the senior residents of the proposed development; 

• The County's standards for providing adequately walkable paths for developments that 

accommodated senior residents; 

• The extent to which the applicant's transportation improvements were delineated in the 

proffers; 

• The timing mechanisms for the pedestrian crosswalk signals at the intersection of Ox 

Road and University Drive under the applicant's proposed transportation improvements; 

• The applicant's justification for the density of the proposed development; 

• The compatibility of the proposed development with the character of the surrounding 
area; 

• The economic viability of the proposal; 

• The process for determining the location of trees and streetlights along the pedestrian 

paths around the site; 

• The applicant's efforts to finalize the design of the streetscape prior to the time of site 

plan review; 

• The extent to which the supplemental plantings screened the proposed development from 

neighboring sites and accurately reflected the depictions in the conceptual development 

plan/final development plan; 

• The role of George Mason University in promoting pedestrian paths that mitigated the 

pedestrian traffic that utilized the intersection of Ox Road and University Drive; 

• The trends in the growth of George Mason University's campus and the increased 

pedestrian traffic that such growth would generate; and 

• The ability of pedestrians to navigate the areas around the subject property. 

The discussion resulted in no changes to the subject application. 

// 

The Planning Commission went into recess at 9:56 p.m. and reconvened at 10:14 p.m. 

// 
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Chairman Murphy called the first listed speaker. 

Peter Bonner, 4334 Delegate Court, Fairfax, spoke in opposition to the subject applications 
because of the following: 

• The proposed development had not been adequately evaluated; 

• The alternatives for redeveloping the site had not been sufficiently evaluated; 

• The applicant's insufficient efforts to mitigate the public's outstanding concerns 
regarding the traffic impact, pedestrian safety, density, and buffer provisions; 

• The residents of the surrounding community had not had adequate opportunities to 
review the proposal; and 

• The residents of the surrounding community had not been adequately informed of the 
proposal. 

(A copy of Mr. Bonner's statement is in the date file.) 

Jerry Poje, 2530 Rambling Court, Vienna, representing the Unitarian Universalist Congregation 
of Fairfax, spoke in support of the subject applications because it increased the amount of 
affordable housing opportunities for the area, provided appropriate care to senior residents, and 
incurred positive environmental benefits. In addition, Mr. Poje stated that the proposed 
development was in harmony the County's efforts to increase the availability of affordable 
housing to low-income residents and mitigate homelessness. 

Lisa Whetzel, 3959 Pender Drive, Suite 200, Fairfax, representing the Alliance for Human 
Services, spoke in support of the subject applications, echoing remarks from Mr. Poje regarding 
the increased need for affordable housing in the County for both senior residents and students 
attending George Mason University. However, Ms. Whetzel expressed concern regarding the 
applicant's efforts to ensure pedestrian safety at the intersection of Ox Road and University 
Drive, adding that she favored finalizing those provisions during the deferral period. (A copy of 
Ms. Whetzel's testimony is in the date file.) 

Joe Fay, 11220 Timberline Drive, Oakton, representing the Alliance for Human 
Services/FACETS, spoke in support of the subject applications, echoing remarks from previous 
speakers regarding the need for affordable housing opportunities in the County. Mr. Fay also 
noted that the site's proximity to George Mason University provided additional educational 
opportunities for programs that benefited existing students and the homeless population. In 
addition, he supported the applicant's provisions for accommodating residents of the existing 
development on the site that would be displaced during the construction of the proposed 
development. (A copy of Mr. Fay's statement is in the date file.) 

Douglas Stewart, 10822 Maple Street, Fairfax, representing the Sierra Club Great Falls Group 
(SCGFG), spoke in opposition to the subject applications because of the following: 

• The density of the proposed development was inconsistent with the character of the site; 
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• The increased traffic generated by the development would incur greater safety hazards 

for pedestrians; and 

• The transportation network that served the subject property was not sufficient to 

accommodate the density of the proposed development. 

(A copy of Mr. Stewart's statement is in the date file.) 

There was a discussion between Commissioner Hurley and Mr. Stewart on the following issues: 

• The policies the SCGFG supported for mixed-use development located near transit 

station areas; 

• The location and availability of bus services and shuttles throughout the George Mason 

University campus; 

• The potential alternative sites for the proposed development; and 

• The efforts of George Mason University to provide housing for its students. 

The discussion resulted in no changes to the subject applications. 

Bill Muras, 11014 Byrd Drive, Fairfax, representing the Royal Legacy Homeowners Association, 

spoke in opposition to the subject applications, echoing concerns from previous speakers 

regarding the density, character compatibility, traffic impact, and safety hazards generated by the 

proposed development. He also gave a presentation to articulate his concerns regarding the 

density and character compatibility of the proposal, a copy of which is in the date file. (A copy of 

Mr. Muras' statement and presentation is in the date file.) 

Rob Prunty, 10921 Santa Clara Drive, Fairfax, representing the Fairfax Villa Civic Association, 

spoke in opposition to the subject applications, echoing concerns from previous speakers 

regarding the traffic impact and pedestrian safety hazards that would be incurred by the proposed 

development. He also stated that the data the applicant utilized for the traffic studies associated 

with the proposal was inadequate. Mr. Prunty gave a presentation on traffic patterns and 

pedestrian safety for the area around the subject property. (A copy of Mr. Prunty's presentation is 

in the date file.) 

There was a discussion between Commissioner Hurley and Mr. Prunty regarding the status of the 

Braddock District Land Use Committee's recommendation for the subject applications, the 

previously approved Comprehensive Plan Amendment for the subject property, and the schedule 

for the Committee's consideration of these applications. 

Neil Gallagher, 10605 School Street, Fairfax, spoke in opposition to the subject applications, 

echoing concerns from previous speakers regarding the density, character compatibility, and the 

traffic impact of the proposed development. Mr. Gallagher also expressed concern regarding the 

amenities that would be included with the development. 

Anne Wagner, 10627 Legacy Lane, Fairfax, spoke in opposition to the subject applications, 

echoing concerns from previous speakers regarding the density, character compatibility, and 
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traffic impact of the proposed development. In addition, Ms. Wagner voiced concern regarding 
the impact of noise and lighting on the neighboring residential community to the north. She also 
suggested removing the components of the development related to student housing for George 
Mason University. 

There was a discussion between Commissioner Hurley and Mr. Fleetwood regarding the 
applicant's justification for including student housing for George Mason University, the 
economic feasibility of the development, and the overall cost of the development. 

William Pitchford, 10609 School Street, Fairfax, spoke in opposition to the subject applications, 
echoing concerns from previous speakers regarding the density and character compatibility of the 
proposed development. Mr. Pitchford also expressed concern regarding the economic impact of 
the student housing portion of the development and the applicant's justification for providing 
student housing. In addition, he said that the proposed buffer between the subject property and 
the residential development to the north was not adequate. 

Randy Green, 4328 Chancery Park Drive, Fairfax, spoke in opposition to the subject 
applications, echoing concerns from previous speakers regarding the traffic impact and safety 
hazards for pedestrians that would be incurred by the proposed development. In addition, Mr. 
Green stated the following additional concerns: 

• The applicant had not adequately justified the need for the proposed development; 

• The process for temporarily relocating existing residents on the site during the 
construction of the development was not sufficiently delineated; 

• The setbacks between the proposed development and the existing residential 
development to the north was not sufficient; and 

• The height of the buildings within proposed development would generate privacy 
concerns for neighboring residents. 

There was a discussion between Commissioner Hurley, Mr. Green, and Mr. Fleetwood regarding 
the applicant's provisions for temporarily relocating the existing residents on the subject property 
during the construction of the proposed development and the timeline for constructing the 
development. 

The discussion resulted in no changes to the subject applications. 

Chairman Murphy called for speakers from the audience. 

Jolina Miha, 4394 Patriot Park Court, Fairfax, spoke in opposition to the subject applications, 
echoing concerns from previous speakers regarding the traffic impact, safety hazards for 
pedestrians, and light pollution that would be incurred by the proposed development. Mr. Miha 
also expressed concerns regarding the environmental impact incurred by the additional traffic 
generated by the development. He also stated that the inclusion of the student housing portion of 
the proposal had not been adequately justified. 
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Terry Larkin, 10531 Legacy Lane, Fairfax, spoke in opposition to the subject applications, 

echoing concerns from previous speakers regarding the inadequate buffer provisions and traffic 

impact of the proposed development. In addition, Ms. Larkin expressed concern regarding the 

amount of tree removal that would be required under the proposal. 

Bill Bremmer, 11025 Stanrich Court, Fairfax, spoke in opposition to the subject applications, 

echoing concerns from previous speakers regarding the density and traffic impact of the 

proposed development. In addition, Mr. Bremmer stated that the applicant had not adequately 

evaluated alternative provisions for accommodating student housing. 

There being no more speakers, Chairman Murphy called for a rebuttal statement from Mr. 

Riegle, who stated the following: 

• The applicant had addressed the concerns raised by VDOT regarding traffic patterns and 

turning data for the intersection of Ox Road and University Drive; 

• The data utilized in the traffic studies reflected traffic patterns consistent with a multi-

family residential development; 

• The buffer along the northern portion of the site would include supplemental plantings; 

and 

• The density and character of the proposal was consistent with similar patterns of 

residential development throughout the County. 

The rebuttal statement resulted in no changes to the subject applications. 

There was a discussion between Mr. Riegle, Ms. Williams, and multiple Commissioners on the 

following issues: 

• The buffer provisions between the subject property and the neighboring residential 

development to the north; 

• The possibility of modifying the buffer provisions to further mitigate the impact of the 

development on neighboring properties; 

• The operation, marketing, ownership, and leasing policies of the student housing portion 

of the development; 

• The issues regarding the need for student housing, traffic impacts, and pedestrian safety 

that the applicant would further evaluate during the deferral period; 

• The process and timeline the applicant would utilize to respond to the concerns expressed 

by the Commissioners and the public; 

• The extent to which the applicant was affiliated with George Mason University; 

• The possibility of VDOT raising concerns regarding the proposal's transportation 

provisions during the deferral period; and 

• The process for effectively sharing updated information with the Commission during the 

deferral period. 

The discussion resulted in no changes to the subject applications. 

20 



RZ/FDP 2018-BR-025/PCA-C-058 — ONE UNIVERSITY DEVELOPMENT July 25, 2019 

PARTNERS, LLC 

There were no further comments or questions from the Commission and staff had no closing 

remarks; therefore, Chairman Murphy closed the public hearing and recognized Commissioner 

Hurley for action on these cases. 

(Start Verbatim Transcript) 

// 

Commissioner Hurley: Well, thank you. Finally, Mr. Chairman, I MOVE THAT THE 

PLANNING COMMISSION DEFER THE DECISION ONLY FOR PCA C-058, RZ 2018-BR-

025, AND FDP 2018-BR-025 TO A DATE CERTAIN OF 12, SEPTEMBER 2019. 

Commissioner Sargeant: Second. 

Chairman Murphy: Seconded by Mr. Sargeant. Is there a discussion of the motion? All those in 

favor of the motion to defer these applications to a date certain of September 12th, with the 

record remaining open for comments, say aye. 

Commissioners: Aye. 

Chairman Murphy: Opposed? Motion carries. Thank you very much, ladies and gentlemen. 

The motion carried by a vote of 10-0. Commissioners Tanner and Ulfelder were absent from the 

meeting. 

(End Verbatim Transcript) 

// 
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The meeting was adjourned at 11:49 p.m. 
Peter F. Murphy, Chairman 
James T. Migliaccio, Secretary 

Audio and video recordings of this meeting are available at the Planning Commission Office, 
12000 Government Center Parkway, Suite 552, Fairfax, Virginia 22035. 

Minutes by: Jacob Caporaletti 

Approved on: December 11, 2019 
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Jacob Caporaletti, Clerk to the 
Fairfax County Planning Commission 

County of Fairfax 

Commonwealth of Virginia 
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this -2-day of 
Jacob Caporaletti. 
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